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Urgent Return Receipt Requested Sign Encrypt Mark Subject Restricted Expand personal&public groups

Fw: Application No. A/YL-ST/640 Supplymentary Information (proposed
temporary cold storage for 3 years)
17/01/2023 11:49

From: fsyledpo_pd/PLAND/HKSARG
To: Alice Yuk Yi CHEUNG/PLAND/HKSARG@PLAND, Davy Long Yin

LAM/PLAND/HKSARG@PLAND
Sent by: Yen PY LEUNG/PLAND/HKSARG
File Ref:

----- Forwarded by Yen PY LEUNG/PLAND/HKSARG on 17/01/2023 11:49 -----

From: <tpbpd@pland.gov.hk>
To: <fsyledpo@pland.gov.hk>
Cc: <kfylam@pland.gov.hk>
Date: 17/01/2023 09:27
Subject: FW: Application No. A/YL-ST/640 Supplymentary Information (proposed temporary cold

storage for 3 years)

From: YUE Lit Fung, Owen
Sent: Monday, January 16, 2023 5:51 PM
To: 'tpbpd@pland.gov.hk' <tpbpd@pland.gov.hk>
Cc: 'ayycheung@pland.gov.hk' <ayycheung@pland.gov.hk>; 'ccmcheung@pland.gov.hk'
<ccmcheung@pland.gov.hk>; 'pyleung@pland.gov.hk' <pyleung@pland.gov.hk>;
'dlylam@pland.gov.hk' <dlylam@pland.gov.hk>
Subject: Application No. A/YL-ST/640 Supplymentary Information (proposed temporary cold storage
for 3 years)

Dear Sir,
Supplementary information (replacement pages for application form and planning
statement) for updating the captioned application after DPO’s advice.

Dr. Owen Yue
Assistant General Manager
Property Development Department
Henderson Land Development Company Limited

From: YUE Lit Fung, Owen
Sent: Monday, January 16, 2023 4:49 PM
To: 'dlylam@pland.gov.hk' <dlylam@pland.gov.hk>
Cc: IP Wai Yi, Alison ; ayycheung@pland.gov.hk; ccmcheung@pland.gov.hk;
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2.2 However, some approval conditions have not been discharged due to the delay in the 

Government land transaction for the approval for Short Term Tenancy/Wavier (STT/STW). 

The progress of the discharge of approval conditions are in Table 2 below.   

 

Table 2   Progress of Discharge of Approval Conditions 

Conditions Discharge/Remark 

(a) No Operation between 9:00 pm and 9:00 am, as proposed by application, is 

allowed on the Site during the planning approval period; 

During operation  

(b) No medium/heavy goods vehicles exceeding 5.5 tonnes as defined in the Road 

Traffic Ordinance or container trailers/tractors are allowed to enter, park or 

operate on the Site at any time during the planning approval period; 

During operation 

(c) The provision and maintenance of free pedestrian and vehicular accesses 

(including EVA) to the surrounding residential dwellings, as proposed by 

applicant, during the planning approval period; 

During operation 

(d) no vehicle is allowed to queue back to or reverse onto/from the site at any time 

during the planning approval period; 

During operation 

(e) The provision of boundary fencing within 6 months from the date of planning 

approval to the satisfaction of the Director of Planning or of the TPB; 

Partly installed. 

Affected by STT. 

(f) The submission of fire service installations proposal within 6 months from the 

date of planning approval to the satisfaction of the Director of Fire Services or of 

the TPB; 

Accepted. 

(g) The implementation of fire service installations within 9 month from the date of 

planning approval to the satisfaction of the Director Fire Services or of the TPB; 

Implementation 

of proposal. 

Affected by STT. 

(h) The submission of a drainage proposal within 3 months from the date 

of planning approval to the satisfaction of the Director of Drainage 

Services or of the TPB; 

Affected by STT. 

(i) The implementation of the accepted drainage proposal within 6 months from the 

date of planning approval to the satisfaction of the Director of Drainage Services 

or of the TPB; 

Affected by STT. 

(j) the maintenance of all existing trees within the site during the planning 

approval period; 

No need in 

current approval. 
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Item 

Reference 

Comment Response 

1  Comments from DSD : Mr. LEONG Cheung Ching T: 2300 1432 via DPO email 9.2.2023 

1.1 It is considered that the drainage proposal is not accepted from 

drainage operation and maintenance point of view.  The applicant is 

requested to duly address the comment below and resubmit the 

proposal for comment:  

An updated Drainage Proposal (Rev A) is enclosed to address various 

comments.. 

1.2 The Stormwater Drainage Manual (SDM) 2013 is obsoleted by 2018 

version. Please update your design according to the latest SDM. 

The assessment criteria and design are updated in the Rev A and based on 

the Stormwater Drainage Manual (SDM) – 5th Edition, 2018. 

1.3 The calculation of time of concentration shall include the flow time 

tf. 

The time of concentration calculation is updated in revised DRAINAGE 

PROPOSAL in Appendix D in the Rev A. 

1.4 The maximum velocity less than shall be checked to not exceed 4m/s 

as per the Geotechnical Manual for Slopes. 

The Manning’s equation for calculating channel capacity is adopted and 

stated in Appendix D. 

1.5 Please provide the record of the existing condition of the 450 U 

channel at the downstream of the application site for our review.  As 

mentioned in the proposal a catchpit U9 is formed, please advise 

whether it is an existing manhole or a proposed new manhole by 

applicant. 

The existing 450U channel (Figure 1 attached) and relevant site photos 

are in Appendix C in the Rev A. The catchpit U9 in previous submitted 

drainage proposal is an existing catchpit. 

1.6 As mentioned in the report, proposed drainage plan will be submitted 

to the Buildings Department for approval before the construction of 

the project. We have the following comments on the attached 

drainage plan from drainage operation and maintenance point of 

view for the applicant to consider in preparing the drainage 

submission: 

Your comments on drainage plan for the drainage submission are 

addressed under para. 1.7 to 1.9 responses below.  

1.7 As part of the proposed drain is at the run-in/run-out, please propose 

proper measure to protect open channel. 

Noted. The proposed surface channel with grating cover will be provided 

at the run-in/run-out. 
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Item 

Reference 

Comment Response 

1.8 At the south of the proposed building, part of the peripheral of the 

application site is not intercepted with drainage system.  Please 

advise. 

Peripheral channels have been provided at the application site boundary 

for intercepting runoff. The layout plan of proposed drainage system is 

shown in the Appendix B3 in the Rev A.  

1.9 Please provide the invert level and the ground level of the 

manholes/catchpits in the drainage proposal.  The gradient of the 

slope shall be indicated in the proposed drainage plan. 

Please be informed the cover level of the proposed channels is similar to 

the existing adjoining ground levels. The information of proposed 

drainage system such as the invert level of the proposed channels and size 

is provided in Appendix D. The layout plan of proposed drainage system 

enclosed in the Appendix B3. 

2  Comments from AFCD : Dr. Wong Kam Yan T: 2150 6932 via DPO email 9.2.2023 

 The applicant is advised to avoid disturbing any wild birds including 

their nests and eggs which are protected under the Wild Animals 

Protection Ordinance, Cap. 170. Any lighting facilities installed on-

site should also be directed towards the site as far as practicable. 

Noted. Taking consideration in the detailed design as per Cap 170 and 

lighting facilities installation.  

3 Comments from EPD : Ms. CHAN Lai Mei, Jolitta T: 2835 1112 via DPO email 9.2.2023 

 The applicant is requested to provide a layout plan to clarify 

whether the E&M machinery would be fully enclosed within the 

cold store building and the openings such as windows/doors of 

the building will be directed away from nearby sensitive receivers 

to avoid adverse noise impact on nearby sensitive receivers. 

The layout plan for the fully enclosed arrangement of the E&M room is 

attached (Plan 1) for reference. 
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1 Introduction 

1.1 General 

Mott MacDonald Hong Kong Limited (MMHK) has been appointed to prepare a 

Drainage Submission for the planning application (TPB/A/YL-ST/640) for the temporary 

cold storage development for a period of 3 years at various Lots in D.D. 105 and 

Adjoining Government Land south of Castle Peak Road – San Tin Section, Mai Po 

Lung, San Tin, Yuen Long for addressing DSD comments. 

This submission will demonstrate that how the site will collect, convey and discharge 

rainwater from the proposed temporary cold storage development to nearby drainage 

system and the drainage system of the Site is feasible in terms of its impact on the 

drainage system.  

1.2 Objectives of the Assignment 

This report presents a drainage proposal for the Application Site that focuses on how 

the runoff from the site will be collected, conveyed and discharged to the existing 

drainage system. 

1.3 Key Development Parameters 

The location of the proposed temporary cold storage development Mai Po Lung is 

shown in Appendix A. The proposed temporary cold storage is about 3,620m2 under 

the current Application No. TPB/A/YL-ST/640.  

1.4 Structure of the Report 

This Drainage Submission contains the following sections in addition to this introduction 

(Section 1):- 

Section 2 – Design Parameters and Assumptions 

Discuss the design parameters and assumptions used in this design submission. 

Section 3 – Existing Site Condition and Proposed Drainage System 

Describe the drainage conditions and catchment characteristics of the existing 

drainage system and the proposed drainage system. 

Section 4 – Conclusion 

Present the summary of the drainage submission. 
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2 Design Parameters and Assumptions 

2.1 General 

This section summarizes the design parameters and assumptions used in estimating 

the runoff generated from the Site. 

2.2 Design Parameters and Assumptions 

2.2.1 Assessment Criteria 

The assessment criteria are based on the recommendations set out in the Stormwater 

Drainage Manual (SDM) – 5th Edition issued by the Drainage Services Department 

(DSD). Since the Site is used for temporary cold storage for 3 years, the drainage 

system within the Study Area shall be designed to cater for a 1 in 10 years storm event.  

2.2.2 Design for Climate Change 

As the Site is used for temporary cold storage for 3 years, design for climate change is 

considered not necessary for this design submission.  

2.2.3 Design Rainfall 

The rainfall intensity is estimate in according to Section 4 of the SDM:-  

                  

Where i = extreme mean intensity in mm/hr 

   td = rainstorm duration (in minutes) (td <= 240), and 

   a, b, c = storm constants given in Table 3d of SDM and repeated in Table 2.1. 

Table 2.1: Storm constants for 10 years return periods of North District Area 

Return Period T (years) 10 

a 1157.7 

b 19.04 

c 0.597 

The design rainfall intensities would be determined with consideration for the maximum 

time of concentration. The time of concentration is defined as the flow travel time from 

the most remote point on the catchment to the outlet. In the deterministic rational 

method, the critical rainfall duration is considered to be equal to the time of 

concentration. 

The time of concentration (tc) for an urban drainage system would be estimated by the 

following equations: 

tc = to + tf 

 

Where, tc = Time of concentration (minutes) 
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 to = Inlet time (time taken for flow from the remotest point 

to reach the most upstream point of the urban 

drainage system) 

 tf = flow time 

The inlet time (to) would be estimated by the Brandsby William’s Equation that applies 

to rural undeveloped catchments and is given as: 

 

to = 0.14465L 

       A0.1 H0.2 

 

Where, to = Inlet time (minutes) 

 L = Distance (on plan) measured on the line of natural flow 

between the submit and the point under consideration 

(m) 

 A = Catchment area (m2) 

 H = Average slope (m/100m), measured along the line of 

natural flow, from the summit of the catchment to the 

point under consideration. 

2.2.4 Runoff Estimation 

A rainstorm event of 1 in 10 years return period is adopted in calculating the runoff 

generated from the proposed temporary cold storage site.  

Peak instantaneous runoff has been calculated using the Rational Method as described 

in SDM, DSD. The peak runoff is given by the following expression:- 

 

The runoff coefficient (C) of 0.95 and 0.2 is adopted for the paved area and unpaved 

area in the Site respectively in accordance with SDM.  

2.2.5 Roughness 

A surface roughness coefficient (Manning’s n value) of 0.016 has been adopted for the 

proposed u-channel in accordance with SDM Table 13.  
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3 Existing Site Condition and Proposed 

Drainage System 

3.1.1 Site Location 

The Site is currently used for storage with majority paved area and some unpaved area. 

It is located in a rural environment and assessable at its north via Castle Peak Road – 

San Tin. The surrounding areas are village houses, upland, warehouses and open 

storage as listed below:  

• to the east and south are village houses;  
• to the north is warehouses and open storage; and  
• to the west is upland in Mai Po Lung. 

The site area of this application No. TPB/A/YL-ST/640 is about 3,620m2 and will be 

used for a proposed temporary cold storage. The Site will comprise two single-storey 

temporary structures with a total floor area of about 1,208m2, and three portable toilets. 

There is no permanent structures. 

The photos of the existing condition of the Site are attached in Appendix C2. A photo 

index plan is also provided in Appendix C1. 

3.2 Existing Drainage System and Proposed Drainage System  

3.2.1 Existing Drainage Systems and Catchments 

In accordance with drainage record plan from DSD, there are no DSD drainage system 

serving the Site. Based on the previous submitted DIA (ref: R9418/01 Issue 1) date 

June 2017 for previous approved application No. TPB/A/YL-ST/573, there is a 450mm 

u-channel run along the footpath to the north of the Site as shown in Appendix B1. 

There are some village houses to the east and south of the Site. The topography of the 

village area to north-east of the Site has a gentle gradient fall from south to north to 

Castle Peak Road – San Tin. Meanwhile, the topography of the village area to east of 

the Site has a gentle gradient fall from north-east to south-west to the Site. The 

remaining village area to south-east of the Site has a gentle gradient fall from west to 

east to Shek Wu Wai Road. 

Apart from village houses, there is an upland to the west of the Site. The topography of 

the upland has a gradient fall from west to east to the adjacent footpath on the west of 

the Site and the footpath falls from south to north. Runoff from the upland will overland 

flow along the footpath from south to north and then to Castle Pak Road-San Tin.   

The topography of the Site has a gentle gradient fall from south to north across the Site. 

The rainwater will become runoff and flow according to topography and overland flow to 

the existing 450mm u-channel run along the footpath to the north of the Site. Based on 

the existing topography of the Site and adjacent area, the area can be sub-divided into 

five sub-catchments, namely sub-catchments E1, E2, E3, E4, E5 and E6 with flow path 

as shown in Appendix B2.  

Sub-catchment E1 - the Site 

The total catchment area (about 3,620m2) is currently mainly paved area with some 

unpaved area. The rainwater for this portion will become runoff and flow according to 
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topography and discharge to existing 450mm u-channel run along the footpath to the 

north of the Site. drainage system will be provided under the proposed condition. 

Sub-catchment E2 at North-East of the Site, E4 and E5 at South-East of the Site 

The total catchment area (about 4,370m2 for E2, about 1,147m2 for E4 and about 

1,939m2 for E5) are currently paved area with some unpaved area. They are within the 

village area. The topography of the village area has a gentle gradient falling to Castle 

Peak Road – San Tin and Shek Wu Wai Road as mentioned above. The rainwater for 

the sub-catchment E2, E4 and E5 is flowing according to topography and finally 

overland flow to the Castle Peak Road – San Tin and Shek Wu Wai Road. Since there 

is no works to sub-catchment E2 and E4 and E5, the existing drainage condition will be 

maintained unaffected by the proposed temporary cold storage. 

Sub-catchment E3 at East of the Site  

The total catchment area (about 1,837m2) is currently unpaved area with some paved 

area. It is within the village area. The topography of the village area has a gentle 

gradient fall to the Site as mentioned above. The rainwater for this portion of area will 

flow according to topography and finally discharge to the Site. Since there is no works 

to sub-catchment E3, the existing surface condition will be maintained unaffected but 

the runoff from this sub-catchment will be considered in formulating of drainage 

proposal for the proposed temporary cold storage. 

Sub-catchment E6 at West of the Site 

The total catchment area (about 19,843m2) is currently mainly unpaved area. It is 

upland to the west of the Site. The topography of this upland area has a gradient fall 

from west to east to footpath to the west of the Site. The rainwater for this portion flow 

according to topography and finally overland flow to along the footpath on the west of 

the Site and finally flow to Castle Peak Road – San Tin. Since there is no works to sub-

catchment E6, the existing drainage condition will be maintained unaffected by the 

proposed temporary cold storage. 

The surface characteristics for the affected area and nearby areas under the existing 

condition are summarized in Table 3.1. 

Table 3.1: Surface Characteristics of sub-catchments E1 to E6 under the 
Existing Condition  

Sub-

Catchment 

Unpaved Area 

(m2) 

Paved Area 

(m2) 

Total Area (m2) 

 

E1 310 3,310 3,620 

E2 1,594 2,775 4,370 

E3 1,286 551 1,837 

E4 473 674 1,147 

E5 158 1,780 1,939 

E6 18,380 1,462 19,843 

Total 32,755 
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3.2.2 Proposed Drainage Systems and Catchments 

Due to the construction of the temporary building blocks and associated access for the 

proposed temporary cold storage, the affected catchments E1 is further divided into 9 

sub-catchments under proposed condition as shown in Appendix B4. The surface 

characteristics for the site area will be changed under proposed condition as tabulated 

in Error! Reference source not found.. As compared with the existing condition, there 

will be a small reduction in paved area. Thus, the total runoff generated from the 

proposed condition is expected to be very similar to the existing condition. For 

remaining sub-catchments (E1, E3, E4, E5 and E6) mentioned in Section 3.2.1, surface 

characteristics will be same as existing.  

To collect runoff from the Site and its surrounding affected areas (catchment E3), three 

sets of proposed channels with catchpits as shown in Appendix B3 are proposed to 

collect the runoff from affected sub-catchments E1 and existing sub-catchment E3 for 

discharging to the existing 450mm u-channel run along the footpath to the north of the 

Site. 

Table 3.2: Surface Characteristics of the Site under the Proposed Condition  

Sub-Catchment Unpaved Area (m2) Paved Area (m2) Total Area (m2) 

 

1 38 279 317 

2 58 427 486 

3 44 321 365 

4 65 474 539 

5 48 349 396 

6 51 371 422 

7 45 328 373 

8 50 369 419 

9 36 266 303 

Total 435 3,185 3,620 

 

Table 3.3: Estimated Surface Runoff from sub-catchments 1 to 9 and E3 under 
the Proposed Condition for 10 Years Strom Return Period  

Sub-

Catchment 

Rainfall Intensity 
(mm/hr) 

Total Area (m2) Runoff (m3/s) Discharge to 

1 187.4 317 0.014 Channel M1A which 

connected to 

Channel M1B 

2 183.7 486 0.021 Channel M1A which 

connected to 

Channel M1B 

3 188.0 365 0.016 Channel M2D that 

connected to 

Channel M2E 
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Sub-

Catchment 

Rainfall Intensity 
(mm/hr) 

Total Area (m2) Runoff (m3/s) Discharge to 

4 189.0 539 0.024 Channel M2C that 

connected to 

Channel M2D, then 

to Channel M2E 

5 186.0 396 0.018 Channel M1 that 

connected to 

Channel M1A 

6 186.5 422 0.019 Channel M2A that 

connected to 

Channel M2B, then 

to Channel M2C  

7 186.7 373 0.017 Channel M1 that 

connected to 

Channel M1A 

8 188.0 419 0.019 Channel M2 that 

connected to 

Channel M2A, then 

to Channel M2B  

9 186.0 303 0.013 Channel M1 that 

connected to 

Channel M1A 

E3 187.4 1837 0.041 Channel M2A that 

connected to 

Channel M2B, then 

to Channel M2C  

Total 0.202 - 

 

Channel Set 1 – Collect runoff from west portion of the Site 

The runoff from west portion of the Site (sub-catchments 1, 2, 5, 7 and 9) will follow the 

topography and discharge to u-channel set 1 which consists of 225mm u-channels M1 

and M1A, and 300mm u-channel M1B.  

Channel Set 2 - Collect runoff from east portion of the Site and Sub-catchment E3 

The runoff from east portion of the Site (sub-catchments 3, 4, 6 and 8) and sub-

catchment E3 will be collected by u-channel set 2 which consists of 225mm half round 

u-channel M2, 225mm u-channel M2A, and 300mm u-channels M2B, M2C, M2D and 

M2E. Also, a 150mm half-round u-channel M0 will be provided at the south boundary of 

the site serving as peripheral drain to prevent runoff flowing outside the site boundary. 

Channel Set 3 - Collect runoff from the Site and Sub-catchment E3 

The flow from proposed peripheral channel set 1 and channel set 2 will join together 

and connect to a proposed 375mm u-channel (Channel No. M3) at the north of the Site. 

Th 375mm u-channel will connect to existing 450mm u-channel run along the footpath 

to the north of the Site at the existing catchpit U9. 

To prevent siltation entering into the existing drainage system due to surface runoff, a 

catchpit with trap will be provided at the joining point of Channel M1B and M2E before 

entering into the existing drainage system at the north. The hydraulic capacity of the 

proposed drainage system has been assessed using Manning’s equation and 

Colebrook White Equation, and the results are summarized in Table 3.4 below. 
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Table 3.4: Hydraulic Capacities of Proposed Channels in the Site  

Channel 
No. 

Size Catchment 
to be 

collected  

Flow from 
Catchment 

(m3/s) 

Free Flow Full-
bore Capacity 

(m3/s)  

Utilization % 

Proposed U-Channel Set 1 

M1 225mm U-
channel 

5 ,7 & 9 0.048 0.056 84.78 

M1A 225mm U-
channel 

1, 2, 5 ,7 & 
9 

0.083 0.093 89.16 

M1B 225mm U-
channel 

1, 2, 5 ,7 & 
9 

0.083 0.096 86.28 

Proposed U-Channel Set 2 

M0 150mm Half-
round U-
channel 

- - 0.009 - 

M2 225mm Half-
round U-
channel 

8 0.019 0.022 84.93 

M2A 225mm U-
channel 

6, 8 & E3 0.078 0.091 85.70 

M2B 300mm U-
channel 

6, 8 & E3 0.078 0.131 59.74 

M2C 300mm U-
channel 

4, 6, 8 & E3 0.103 0.118 86.71 

M2D 300mm U-
channel 

3, 4, 6, 8 & 
E3 

0.119 0.138 86.30 

M2E 300mm U-
channel 

3, 4, 6, 8 & 
E3 

0.119 0.137 86.93 

Proposed U-Channel Set 3 

M3 375mm U-
channel 

1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 
6, 7, 8, 9 & 

E3 

0.202 0.243 83.23 

 

Based on the hydraulic calculation, the proposed drainage system of the Site has 

sufficient capacity to collect the design runoff from the affected sub-catchments 1 to 9 

and existing local sub-catchment E3. The indicative alignment of proposed drainage 

system of the site, catchment and flow path of the surface runoff generated from the site 

are indicated in Appendix B4. Detailed calculation could refer to Appendix D.  

Under the existing condition, runoff from all the affect catchments, including the 

Application Site, is collected by the existing 450mm u-channel by overland flow. Under 

the proposed condition, the runoff is decrease due to the more unpaved area for the 

Application Site and no change in overall flow path. Thus, there is impacts to the 
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existing drainage system and the drainage proposal is considered to be adequate for 

the proposed temporary cold storage.  
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4 Conclusion 

The layout plan of the Site is provided in Appendix A. The Site consists of an area of 

about 3,620 m2 under the current Application No. TPB/A/YL-ST/640 for proposed 

temporary cold storage for a period of 3 years.  

The Site is currently mainly paved area with some unpaved area. Due to the 

construction of the temporary building blocks and associated access for the proposed 

temporary cold storage, there will be slightly change in surface characteristics for the 

site area and resulting in a small reduction in paved area. Thus, no additional runoff 

from the site is anticipated as the total paved area for the site is slightly less in the 

proposed condition.  

Three sets of proposed u-channels with catchpits are proposed to collect the runoff from 

the Site and its nearby sub-catchment E3. The proposed channels will be connected to 

the existing 450mm u-channel to the north of the Site with a catchpit with trap to prevent 

siltation entering into the existing drainage system. Based on hydraulic calculation, the 

proposed drainage system of the Site has sufficient capacity to collect the runoff from 

the Site (sub-catchments 1 to 9) and existing local sub-catchment E3. Therefore, it is 

considered that site has no adverse drainage impact on the existing drainage system 

and the proposed drainage system shall be adequate to service the proposed 

temporary cold storage of the Site. 
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5 Appendices  

Appendix A Location Plan  

Appendix B1 Existing Drainage System adjacent Application Site 

Appendix B2 Sub-catchment Plan of Existing Drainage System 

Appendix B3 Proposed Drainage System of Application Site 

Appendix B4 Sub-catchment Plan of Proposed Drainage System 

Appendix C1 Photo Index Plan of Application Site 

Appendix C2 Site Condition Photo of Application Site 

Appendix D Hydraulic Calculation of Proposed U-channels  
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Appendix A  

Location Plan  
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Date Mar 2023 Scale FileN.T.S.
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in D.D. 105 and Adjoining Government Land, South of Castle Peak Road – San Tin, Mai Po Lung, San Tin, Yuen Long, New Territories

Location Plan
A

Development Site

+
8.40

+
6.60

Legend

Application Site

Existing Drainage Network

+8.40
Approximate Ground 

Level (mPD) 

Direction of Flow Path

Mai Po Lung

+
6.80
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Appendix B1  

Existing Drainage System adjacent Application 

Site  
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Existing Drainage System adjacent Application Site B1
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Application Site

Existing Drainage Network

Existing 450 U-channel 

mentioned in previous approved 

DIA under Application No. 

TPB/A/YL-ST/573)

Existing Catchpit (the catchpit 

mentioned in previous 

approved DIA) 

Existing Catchpit U9
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Appendix B2  

Sub-catchment Plan of Existing Drainage 

System 
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Appendix B3  

Proposed Drainage System of Application Site  
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Proposed Drainage System of Application Site B3

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

Proposed Drainage Network 

(Channel) convey runoff

Proposed Catchpit 

Channel 

No.

Size

M1 225mm U-channel

M1A 225mm U-channel

M1B 300mm U-channel

M0 150mm Half-round U-channel

M2 225mm Half-round U-channel

M2A 225mm U-channel

M2B 300mm U-channel

M2C 300mm U-channel

M2D 300mm U-channel

M2E 300mm U-channel

M3 375mm U-channel

Channel M1
225mm U-channel

U.S. I.L= 8.535

D.S. I.L.= 7.525 

min. 1 in 81 fall

Channel M1A
225mm U-channel

U.S. I.L= 7.525

D.S. I.L.=4.970

min. 1 in 30 fall

Channel M1B
300mm U-channel

U.S. I.L= 4.970

D.S. I.L.=4.900

min. 1 in 129 fall

Channel M2
225mm Half -round U-channel

U.S. I.L= 8.615

D.S. I.L.= 7.975 

min. 1 in 66 fall

Channel M2A
225mm U-channel

U.S. I.L= 7.975

D.S. I.L.= 6.670

min. 1 in 31 fall

Channel M2B
300mm U-channel

U.S. I.L= 6.670

D.S. I.L.= 6.280 

min. 1 in 70 fall

Channel M2C
300mm U-channel

U.S. I.L= 6.280

D.S. I.L.= 5.640

min. 1 in 86 fall

Channel M2D
300mm U-channel

U.S. I.L= 5.640

D.S. I.L.= 5.440 

min. 1 in 63 fall

Channel M2E
300mm U-channel

U.S. I.L= 5.440

D.S. I.L.= 4.900 

min. 1 in 64 fall

Channel M0
150mm Half -round U-channel

U.S. I.L= 8.620

D.S. I.L.= 8.615

Channel M3
375mm U-channel

U.S. I.L= 4.900

D.S. I.L.= 4.840 

min. 1 in 67 fall

Existing Catchpit U9
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Appendix B4  

Sub-catchment Plan of Proposed Drainage 

System 
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Appendix C1  

Photo Index Plan of Application Site 
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Appendix C2   

Site Condition Photo of Application Site 

  



Project

Title

Date Mar 2023 Scale FileN.T.S.

Appendix 

Drainage Submission for  the Proposed Temporary Cold Storage for a Period of Three Years in “Residential (Group D)” Zone at Various Lots 

in D.D. 105 and Adjoining Government Land, South of Castle Peak Road – San Tin, Mai Po Lung, San Tin, Yuen Long, New Territories

Site Condition Photo of Application Site C2

1 2



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

3 4

Existing 
Catchpit U9



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

5



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

6

7



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

8
9



Mott MacDonald | Drainage Submission for the Proposed Temporary Cold Storage for a Period of Three Years in “Residential (Group D)” 
Zone at Various Lots in D.D. 105 and Adjoining Government Land, South of Castle Peak Road – San Tin, Mai Po Lung, San Tin, Yuen 
Long, New Territories 
Drainage Submission (Report No. 364736/071/A) 
 

364736 | 071 | A | March 2023 
 
 

 

   19 

Appendix D  

Hydraulic Calculation of Proposed U-channels  

  



Project

Ref. Calculation

Objective

Methodogy

1. Determine the Catchment Area and its Characteristic 

2. Determine the rainfall intensity for the catchments

3. Use Rational Method as advised in the Stormwater Drainage Manual (5th Edition SDM) to find runoff contributing to the propsoed U-channels

4. Use Manning Equation to determine the capacity of the propsoed U-channel and check against the design flow

1. Determine the Catchment Area and its Characteristic 

Existing catchment area of the study area

Remark:- There will be 12% unpaved area  in Application Site.

2. Determine the Rainfall Intensity for the Catchment

2.1. Determine the Rainfall Intensity for the Catchment 

SDM return period 2 5 10 20 50 100 200

Table 3 1004.5 1112.2 1157.7 1178.6 1167.6 1131.2 1074.8

17.24 18.86 19.04 18.49 16.76 14.82 12.47

0.644 0.614 0.597 0.582 0.561 0.543 0.523

Time of concentration (tc) = natural flow time (t0) + channel flow time (tf)

SDM

Cl. 7.5.2

For Sub-catchment 1, 

distance (L) = m

average slope (H) = (change in height)/L

H = ( 6.80 - 5.50 ) / 33

H = %

area of catchment (A) = m
2

t0 = min via indicative natural flow

tf = length of pipe / velocity (assume flow velocity = 3m/s) via proposed boundary drain

length of pipe = m

tf = min

tc = min

where i is the rainfall intensity

SDM

Cl. 4.3.2 return period 2 5 10 20 50 100 200

i = 149.2 171.9 187.4 202.9 225.0 243.7 265.0 mm/hr

For Sub-catchment 2, 

distance (L) = m

average slope (H) = (change in height)/L

H = ( 8.40 - 6.80 ) / 46

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

i = 145.8 168.3 183.7 198.8 220.3 238.3 258.4 mm/hr

For Sub-catchment 3, 

distance (L) = m

average slope (H) = (change in height)/L

H = ( 7.50 - 6.60 ) / 30

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

i = 149.8 172.4 188.0 203.5 225.7 244.6 266.1 mm/hr

For Sub-catchment 4, 

distance (L) = m

average slope (H) = (change in height)/L

H = ( 8.40 - 7.70 ) / 28

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

i = 150.7 173.4 189.0 204.6 226.9 246.1 267.9 mm/hr

For Sub-catchment 5, 

distance (L) = m

average slope (H) = (change in height)/L

H = ( 9.40 - 8.40 ) / 36

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

i = 147.9 170.5 186.0 201.3 223.2 241.7 262.5 mm/hr

E3 1,837 551 1,286

0.0

0.00

1.96

36

2.77

396

0.00

1.78

9 303 266 36

3 365 321 44

5 396

2.34

0.0

0.00

2.34

2.79

28

2.52

539

1.78

0.0

30

2.96

365

1.96

46

3.48

486

2.79

0.0

0.00

3.89

317

2.07

0.0

0.00

2.07

Storm Constants: a =

b =

c =

33

1,502 205

7 373 328 45

8 419 369 50

4 539 474 65

6 422 371 51

349 48

1 317 279 38

2 486 427 58

Determine how the runoff from the site will be collected, conveyed and discharged to the proposed drainage system.

Refer to  Appendix  for the catchment plan for proposed condition. 

Sub Catchment Total Catchment Areas(m
2
) Paved Area (m

2
) Unpaved Area (m

2
)

Appendix D - Drainage Submission for the Proposed Temporary Cold Storage for a Period of Three Years in “Residential (Group D)” Zone at Various Lots in D.D. 105 

and Adjoining Government Land, South of Castle Peak Road – San Tin, Mai Po Lung, San Tin, Yuen Long, New Territories
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Ref. Calculation
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and Adjoining Government Land, South of Castle Peak Road – San Tin, Mai Po Lung, San Tin, Yuen Long, New Territories

For Sub-catchment 6, 

distance (L) = m

average slope (H) = (change in height)/L

H = ( 9.40 - 8.20 ) / 36

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

i = 148.3 170.9 186.5 201.8 223.7 242.3 263.3 mm/hr

For Sub-catchment 7, 

distance (L) = m

average slope (H) = (change in height)/L

H = ( 9.40 - 8.56 ) / 33

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

i = 148.5 171.1 186.7 202.0 224.0 242.6 263.6 mm/hr

For Sub-catchment 8, 

distance (L) = m

average slope (H) = (change in height)/L

H = ( 9.40 - 8.56 ) / 30

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

i = 149.8 172.4 188.0 203.5 225.7 244.6 266.0 mm/hr

For Sub-catchment 9, 

distance (L) = m

average slope (H) = (change in height)/L

H = ( 8.84 - 8.56 ) / 29

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

i = 147.9 170.5 186.0 201.3 223.1 241.6 262.4 mm/hr

For Sub-catchment E3, 

distance (L) = m

average slope (H) = (change in height)/L

H = ( 14.91 - 8.93 ) / 50

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

i = 149.2 171.8 187.4 202.8 224.9 243.6 264.9 mm/hr

3. Determine Flow from the catchment 

SDM where m is the number of subcatchments

Cl. 7.5.2

refer to  Appendix for the existing catchment plan

Assumptions:

1. The whole catchment can be described by grassland and paved development.

2. Grassland catchment shall take a runoff coefficient of 0.2 as taken from the mean of "Flat Grassland": C = 0.13 - 0.25

3. Paved catchement shall take a runoff coefficient of 0.95 as taken from the higher end of "Concrete"

i.e. 0.0

3.1 Determine Flow from the catchment (1 in 10 years Storm Event)

1837 0.041

2.08

0.0

0.00

2.08

E3 10 187.4

9 10 186.0

50

11.92

1.97

0.0

0.00

1.97

303 0.013

365 0.016

5 10 186.0 396 0.018

4

0.0

0.00

2.35

3 10 188.0

Sub-catchment Return Period Rainfall intensity (mm/hr)

1,837

419

8 10 188.0 419 0.019

7 10 186.7 373 0.017

6 10 186.5 422 0.019

10 189.0 539 0.024

2 10 183.7 486 0.021

1 10 187.4 317 0.014

Catchment Area (m2) Flow from catchment (m3/s)

4. According to SDM (5th Edition), climate change effect will not be considered in this assessment. Since the Site is proposed temporary use for perod of 3 years, design for climate change is 

considered not necessary for this design submission.

% increase in rainfall is applied to this assessment. 

5)The Application Site is "Proposed Temporary Cold Storage for a Period of 3 Years " and thus assumed be designed for 10  years return period rainstorm. 
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Ref. Calculation

Appendix D - Drainage Submission for the Proposed Temporary Cold Storage for a Period of Three Years in “Residential (Group D)” Zone at Various Lots in D.D. 105 

and Adjoining Government Land, South of Castle Peak Road – San Tin, Mai Po Lung, San Tin, Yuen Long, New Territories

4. Determine the size of Proposed U-channel

The Application Site is "Proposed Temporary Cold Storage for a Period of 3 Years " and thus assumed be designed for 10  years return period rainstorm. 

Using Manning equation for calculate the channel Free Flow Full Bore Capacity

SDM
Table 12

where 

= Velocity (m/s)

R = Hydraulic Radius (m)
Sf = Slope (m/m)

n = Manning's Coefficient of Roughness (Dimensionless)

Assumptions:
1 Surface roughness coefficient (n) = 0.016 (assume poor concrete lined channel)

Proposed U-channel

Channel 

Length

m

82.3

75.6

9.0

42.0

40.4

27.2

54.7

12.6

34.5

4.0

5. Conclusion (1) 

(1) The proposed drainage network has sufficient capacity to collect the the peak flow from all identified catchments.

0.022 84.93 OK

0.103 0.118 86.71 OK

Proposed 225mm Half-

round U-channel M2
0.225 0.02 0.35 0.06 8.615

Proposed 300mm U-

channel M2B
0.3 0.08

6.280 5.640 860.3 0.08 0.77 0.10

70

7.975 66

Proposed 375 mm U-

channel M3
0.375 0.13 0.96 0.13 4.900

Proposed 300mm U-

channel M2C

4.840 67 0.202 0.243 83.23 OK

4.900 64 0.119 0.137 86.93 OK

Proposed 300mm U-

channel M2E
0.3 0.08 0.77 0.10 5.440

5.440 63 0.119 0.138 86.30 OK

Proposed 300mm U-

channel M2D
0.3 0.08 0.77 0.10 5.640

0.078 0.131 59.74 OK

0.091 85.70 OK

0.77 0.10 6.670 6.280

Proposed 225mm  U-

channel M2A
0.225 0.05 0.58 0.08 7.975 6.670 31 0.078

4.900 129 0.083

0.019

0.096 86.28 OK

Proposed 300mm  U-

channel M1B
0.3 0.08 0.77 0.10 4.970

4.970 30 0.083 0.093 89.16 OK

Proposed 225mm  U-

channel M1A
0.225 0.05 0.58 0.08 7.525

7.525 81 0.048 0.056 84.78 OK

Proposed 225mm  U-

channel M1
0.225 0.05 0.58 0.08 8.535

Downstream 

Invert

mPD

Slope of the channel 

bed (So) 

1 in Flow from Catchment m
3
/s

Free Flow Full-bore 

Capacity m
3
/s 

Utilization 

%

Flow 

Capacity 

Check

Channel Name Channel Size

m Area m2 Wet Paremeter m

Hydraulic Radius 

m

Upstream Invert

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
 
 

 

   20 

 



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
 
 

 

   21 

       

 

 

  

 

 

 

 
mottmac.hk 
 



Development Site

Mai Po Lung

A

B

Figure 1 - Silted existing 450 u-channel observed during site visit 

Existing 450 U-channel mentioned in previous approved DIA 
under Application No. TPB/A/YL-ST/573)
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2 Attachments

Dear Davy,
RtC table to clarify departmental concerns is attached for your further action.

Dr. Owen Yue
Assistant General Manager
Property Development Department
Henderson Land Development Company Limited

From: dlylam@pland.gov.hk [mailto:dlylam@pland.gov.hk]
Sent: Thursday, April 06, 2023 3:21 PM
To: YUE Lit Fung, Owen 
Cc: IP Wai Yi, Alison ; 'ayycheung@pland.gov.hk' <ayycheung@pland.gov.hk>;
'pyleung@pland.gov.hk' <pyleung@pland.gov.hk>
Subject: RE: Departmental Comments for s.16 Planning Application A/YL-ST/640

CAUTION:  External email

Dear Owen,

I refer to the captioned planning application. Please find attached the departmental
comments on FI-1 for your information/response.

For enquires on the departmental comments, please contact relevant officers as stated in
the file attached directly. For other enquiries, please contact the undersigned or Alice
CHEUNG at 3168 4041 of this office.

Best Regards,
Davy LAM
TPG/FSYLE(2),
DPO/FS&YLE, PlanD
Tel: 3168 4045

RE: Departmental Comments for s.16 Planning Application A/YL-ST/640 - FI
0312/04/2023 10:15
From: "YUE Lit Fung, Owen" 
To: "'dlylam@pland.gov.hk'" <dlylam@pland.gov.hk>
Cc: "IP Wai Yi, Alison" , "'ayycheung@pland.gov.hk'"
<ayycheung@pland.gov.hk>, "'pyleung@pland.gov.hk'" <pyleung@pland.gov.hk>
File Ref:

Figures 1 & 2.pdf RtoC Table.docx

Page 1 of 5

17/04/2023file:///D:/temp/notes9A0285/~web0243.htm

Appendix Ib of RNTPC
Paper No. A/YL-ST/640B



Proposed Temporary Cold Storage for a Period of Three Years in “Residential (Group D)” Zone at Various Lots in D.D. 105 and Adjoining Government Land,
South of Castle Peak Road – San Tin, Mai Po Lung, San Tin, Yuen Long, New Territories.

Page 1 of 1

Item
Reference

Comment Response

1 Comments from DSD : Mr. LEONG Cheung Ching T: 2300 1432 via DPO email 6.4.2023

Please include the details of the catchpit, U channel and the grating
cover in the drainage proposal. The terminal catchpit shall have
desilting trap.

Noted and the details of the catchpit, U channel and the grating cover are
provided in the attached Figure 1 and Figure 2. Desilting trap will be
provided for the terminal catchpit and details in Figure 1.

2 Comments from FSD : Contact Person: Mr. WONG Ho Yin; Tel: 2733 7737via DPO email 6.4.2023

Automatic sprinkler system shall be provided in accordance with
LPC BS EN 12845:2015 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 5/2020.

Noted and FSR plan will be submitted for the discharge of approval
condition, if needed, before implementation.

Fire detection and fire alarm systems shall be provided in
accordance with BS 5839-1:2017 and the FSD Circular Letter No.
6/2021.

Ditto.

Emergency lighting shall be provided in accordance with BS 5266-
1:2016, BS EN 1838:2013 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 4/2021.

Ditto

"F.S. Communication Centre" as mentioned in FS Notes items 7.4
and 8.5 shall be revised as "F.S. Communications Centre".

Ditto

The FSI provisions as indicated on DRG No. G-003 shall tally with
those on G-006.

Ditto

The EVA calculations provided shall tally with the information on
plans.

Ditto

Automatic sprinkler system shall be provided in accordance with
LPC BS EN 12845:2015 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 5/2020.

Ditto

3 Comments from EPD : Ms. CHAN Lai Mei, Jolitta T: 2835 1112 via DPO email 6.4.2023

Further to the layout plan attached under FI-1 (which is different
from the previous planning application No. A/YL-ST-573), it
appears that there are openings directing towards nearby sensitive
receivers. Please clarify and update the layout plan as necessary.

The arrangement of the acoustic louver is set towards the direct north to
avoid the noise sensitive receivers in the west and east.
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Figure 
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Typical Details of Proposed Catchpit 1

2

2

DETAILS OF PROPOSED CATCHPIT WITHOUT DESILTING TRAP

SCALE N.T.S.

DETAILS OF PROPOSED CATCHPIT WITH DESILTING TRAP

SCALE N.T.S.
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Typical Details of Proposed U-channel and Grating Cover 2



5 Attachments

Dear Sir,
FI to address departmental comments and files also uploaded to the TPB website.
Original copies have been posted today.

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

RE: Departmental Comments for s.16 Planning Application A/YL-ST/640 -
FI04/05/2023 12:28
From: "YUE Lit Fung, Owen" 
To: "'tpbpd@pland.gov.hk'" <tpbpd@pland.gov.hk>, "'fsyledpo@pland.gov.hk'"
<fsyledpo@pland.gov.hk>
Cc: "IP Wai Yi, Alison" , "'ayycheung@pland.gov.hk'"
<ayycheung@pland.gov.hk>, "'pyleung@pland.gov.hk'" <pyleung@pland.gov.hk>,
"'dlylam@pland.gov.hk'" <dlylam@pland.gov.hk>
File Ref:

20230503 FI-02 Cover Letter signed.pdf A_YL_ST_640 FI -02 FSD Notes.pdf

A_YL_ST_640 FI -02 FSD Plan.pdf A_YL_ST_640 FI-02 DSD Figures 1 & 2.pdf

A_YL_ST_640 FI-02 RtoC (DSD FSD EPD) Table.pdf

Page 1 of 4

09/05/2023file:///D:/temp/notes9A0285/~web1439.htm
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FI-02: Proposed Temporary Cold Storage for a Period of Three Years in “Residential (Group D)” Zone at Various Lots in D.D. 105 and Adjoining Government Land,  
South of Castle Peak Road – San Tin, Mai Po Lung, San Tin, Yuen Long, New Territories.  

 
Page 1 of 2 

Item 

Reference 

Comment Response 

1  Comments from DSD : Mr. LEONG Cheung Ching T: 2300 1432 via DPO email 6.4.2023 

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

2  Comments from FSD : Contact Person: Mr. WONG Ho Yin; Tel: 2733 7737via DPO email 6.4.2023 

 Automatic sprinkler system shall be provided in accordance with 

LPC BS EN 12845:2015 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 5/2020. 
Noted and Amended on F.S. Notes. 

The Automatic sprinkler system shall be provided in accordance with LPC 

BS EN 12845:2015 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 5/2020, will be 

followed. 

 Fire detection and fire alarm systems shall be provided in 

accordance with BS 5839-1:2017 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 

6/2021. 

Noted and Amended on F.S. Notes. 

The Fire detection and fire alarm systems shall be provided in accordance 

with BS 5839-1:2017 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 6/2021, will be 

followed. 

 Emergency lighting shall be provided in accordance with BS 5266-

1:2016, BS EN 1838:2013 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 4/2021. 
Noted and Amended on F.S. Notes. 

The Emergency lighting shall be provided in accordance with BS 5266-

1:2016, BS EN 1838:2013 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 4/2021, will 

be followed. 

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
Noted and Amended on layout plans DRG No. G-003 and G-006. 

 The EVA calculations provided shall tally with the information on 

plans. 
Noted and details are subject to FSI submission in the implementation 

stage. 
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Urgent Return Receipt Requested Sign Encrypt Mark Subject Restricted Expand personal&public groups

Fw: s.16 Planning Application A/YL-ST/640 - FI (FSD)
12/06/2023 11:26

From: fsyledpo_pd/PLAND/HKSARG
To: Alice Yuk Yi CHEUNG/PLAND/HKSARG@PLAND, Davy Long Yin

LAM/PLAND/HKSARG@PLAND
Sent by: Yen PY LEUNG/PLAND/HKSARG
File Ref:

----- Forwarded by Yen PY LEUNG/PLAND/HKSARG on 12/06/2023 11:26 -----

From: <tpbpd@pland.gov.hk>
To: <fsyledpo@pland.gov.hk>
Cc: <phctsui@pland.gov.hk>, <kkfyiu@pland.gov.hk>
Date: 12/06/2023 11:07
Subject: FW: s.16 Planning Application A/YL-ST/640 - FI (FSD)

From: YUE Lit Fung, Owen 
Sent: Monday, June 12, 2023 11:03 AM
To: 'tpbpd@pland.gov.hk' <tpbpd@pland.gov.hk>
Cc: ayycheung@pland.gov.hk; pyleung@pland.gov.hk; 'dlylam@pland.gov.hk'
<dlylam@pland.gov.hk>; IP Wai Yi, Alison 
Subject: RE: s.16 Planning Application A/YL-ST/640 - FI (FSD)

Dear Sir,
FI (FSD) for the captioned application is attached for your further action.
Relevant files uploaded to TPB website.

Dr. Owen Yue
Assistant General Manager
Property Development Department
Henderson Land Development Company Limited

From: dlylam@pland.gov.hk [mailto:dlylam@pland.gov.hk]
Sent: Tuesday, May 16, 2023 3:46 PM
To: YUE Lit Fung, Owen 
Cc: ayycheung@pland.gov.hk; pyleung@pland.gov.hk
Subject: Re: s.16 Planning Application A/YL-ST/640 - FI (FSD)

CAUTION: External email

Dear Owen,

Appendix Id of RNTPC
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

1  Comments from FSD : WONG Ho-yin at 2733 7737 or Mr. CHAU Nai-yin at 2733 7781 via DPO email 16.5.2023 

i.  Automatic sprinkler system shall be provided in 

accordance with LPC BS EN 12845:2015 and the FSD 

Circular Letter No. 5/2020. 

Noted and Amended on F.S. Notes. 

The Automatic sprinkler system shall be provided in accordance with LPC BS EN 

12845:2015 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 5/2020, will be followed. 

ii.  Fire detection and fire alarm systems shall be 

provided in accordance with BS 5839-1:2017 and the 

FSD Circular Letter No. 6/2021. 

Noted and Amended on F.S. Notes. 

The Fire detection and fire alarm systems shall be provided in accordance with BS 

5839-1:2017 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 6/2021, will be followed. 

iii.  Emergency lighting shall be provided in accordance 

with BS 5266-1:2016, BS EN 1838:2013 and the FSD 

Circular Letter No. 4/2021. 

Noted and Amended on F.S. Notes. 

The Emergency lighting shall be provided in accordance with BS 5266-1:2016, BS EN 

1838:2013 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 4/2021, will be followed. 

iv.  "F.S. Communication Centre" as mentioned in FS 

Notes items 7.4 and 8.5 shall be revised as "F.S. 

Communications Centre". 

Noted and Amended on F.S. Notes. 

 

v.  The FSI provisions as indicated on DRG No. G-003 

shall tally with those on G-006. 
Noted and Amended on layout plans. 

The FSI provisions as indicated on DRG No. G-003 are tally with those on G-006. 

vi.  The EVA calculations provided shall tally with the 

information on plans. 
Noted and EVA calculations are provided tally with the information on plans. 

vii.  Automatic sprinkler system shall be provided in 

accordance with LPC BS EN 12845:2015 and the FSD 

Circular Letter No. 5/2020. 

Noted and Amended on F.S. Notes. 

The Automatic sprinkler system shall be provided in accordance with LPC BS EN 

12845:2015 and the FSD Circular Letter No. 5/2020 will be followed. 
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1 Attachment

Dear Davy,
The enclosed revised FSI has been uploaded to TPB website.

Dr. Owen Yue
Assistant General Manager
Property Development Department
Henderson Land Development Company Limited

From: dlylam@pland.gov.hk [mailto:dlylam@pland.gov.hk]
Sent: Monday, June 19, 2023 2:27 PM
To: YUE Lit Fung, Owen <owen.yue@hld.com>
Cc: ayycheung@pland.gov.hk; pyleung@pland.gov.hk
Subject: RE: s.16 Planning Application A/YL-ST/640 - FI (FSD) revision

CAUTION:  External email

From: "YUE Lit Fung, Owen"
To: "'dlylam@pland.gov.hk'"
Cc: "ayycheung@pland.gov.hk" , "pyleung@pland.gov.hk"
Date: 19/06/2023 12:36
Subject: RE: s.16 Planning Application A/YL-ST/640 - FI (FSD) revision

RE: s.16 Planning Application A/YL-ST/640 - FI-05 (FSD) revised FSI20/06/2023 14:58
From: "YUE Lit Fung, Owen" 
To: "'dlylam@pland.gov.hk'" <dlylam@pland.gov.hk>
Cc: "ayycheung@pland.gov.hk" <ayycheung@pland.gov.hk>, "pyleung@pland.gov.hk"
<pyleung@pland.gov.hk>
File Ref:

A_YL_ST_640 FI -05 FSD Plan.pdf

Page 1 of 3

23/06/2023file:///D:/temp/notes9A0285/~web1102.htm

Appendix Ie of RNTPC
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Previous s.16 Applications covering the Application Site

Approved Applications

No. Application No. Use(s)/ Development(s) Date of Consideration
(RNTPC/TPB)

1. A/YL-ST/53 Temporary Open Storage and Retail Sale of
Construction Machinery and Parts for a Period
of 12 Months

22.5.1998 (RNTPC)

2. A/YL-ST/76 Temporary Container Trailer and Tractor Park
for a Period of 12 Months

22.1.1999 (RNTPC)

3. A/YL-ST/81 Temporary Warehouse & Container Trailer &
Tractor Park for a Period of 12 Months

30.4.1999 (RNTPC)

4. A/YL-ST/85 Temporary Retail Sale and Open Storage of
Construction Machinery for a Period of 12
Months

28.5.1999 (RNTPC)

5. A/YL-ST/114 Temporary Container Trailer/Tractor Park for a
Period of 3 Years

3.3.2000 (RNTPC)
[Revoked on 3.9.2001]

6. A/YL-ST/124 Proposed Residential Development 5.5.2000 (RNTPC)

7. A/YL-ST/130 Temporary Warehouse and Container Tractor
and Trailer Park for a Period of 3 Years

2.6.2000 (RNTPC)
[Revoked on 2.12.2001)

8. A/YL-ST/133 Temporary Retail Sale and Open Storage of
Construction Machinery for a Period of 3 Years

30.6.2000 (RNTPC)

9. A/YL-ST/244 Temporary Open Storage and Retail Sale of
Construction Machinery for a Period of 3 Years

15.8.2003 (RNTPC)

10. A/YL-ST/327 Temporary Open Storage and Retail Sale of
Construction Machinery for a Period of 3 Years

19.1.2007 (RNTPC)

11. A/YL-ST/386 Temporary Open Storage and Retail Sale of
Construction Machinery for a Period of 3 Years

19.3.2010 (RNTPC)

12. A/YL-ST/432 Temporary Open Storage and Retail Sale of
Construction Machinery for a Period of 3 Years

7.6.2013 (RNTPC)

13. A/YL-ST/493 Temporary Open Storage and Retail Sale of
Construction Machinery for a Period of 3 Years

26.8.2016 (RNTPC)

14. A/YL-ST/508 Proposed Temporary Cold Storage for a Period
of 3 Years

12.1.2018 (RNTPC)
[Revoked on 12.6.2020]

15. A/YL-ST/551 Temporary Open Storage and Retail Sale of
Construction Machinery for a Period of 3 Years

19.7.2019 (RNTPC)

16. A/YL-ST/573 Proposed Temporary Cold Storage for a Period of
3 Years

10.7.2020 (RNTPC)
[Revoked on
10.12.2022]

17. A/YL-ST/623 Renewal of Planning Approval for Temporary
Open Storage and Retail Sale of Construction
Machinery for a Period of 3 Years

29.7.2022 (RNTPC)



A/YL-ST/640

Rejected Applications

No. Application No. Use(s)/ Development(s) Date of Consideration
(RNTPC/TPB)

Rejection
Reason(s)

1. A/YL-ST/185 Temporary Container Tractor and
Trailer Park for a Period of 3 Years

1.3.2022 (RNTPC) (1), (2)

2. A/YL-ST/196 Temporary Warehouse, Container
Tractor/Trailer Park for a Period of 3
Years

10.5.2002 (RNTPC) (1), (2)

3. A/YL-ST/199 Temporary Container Trailer/Tractor
Park for a Period of 3 Years

31.5.2002 (RNTPC) (1), (2)

4. A/YL-ST/205 Temporary Warehouse, Container
Tractor/Trailer Park for a Period of 3
Years

9.8.2002 (RNTPC) (1), (2)

5. A/YL-ST/209 Temporary Container Tractor and
Trailer Park for a Period of 3 Years

13.9.2002 (RNTPC) (2)

6. A/YL-ST/212 Temporary Warehouse, Container
Trailer and Tractor Park for a Period
of 3 Years

25.10.2002 (RNTPC) (1), (2)

7. A/YL-ST/224 Temporary Container Trailer/Tractor
Park for a Period of 3 Years

7.2.2003 (RNTPC) (1), (2)

8. A/YL-ST/235 Temporary Open Storage of
Construction Machinery for Sale for
a Period of 3 Years

16.5.2003 (RNTPC) (2), (3)

9. A/YL-ST/249 Temporary Retail and Open Storage
of Construction Machinery for a
Period of 3 Years

16.1.2004 (TPB on
review)

(2), (3)

10. A/YL-ST/265 Temporary Open Storage and Retail
of Construction Machinery for a
Period of 3 Years

17.9.2004 (TPB on
review)

(2), (3), (4)

11. A/YL-ST/286 Temporary Open Storage of
Construction Machinery and Parts for
Sale for a Period of 3 Years

15.7.2005 (RNTPC) (2), (3), (4)

12. A/YL-ST/332 Temporary Open Storage and Retail
of Construction Machinery for a
Period of 3 Years

22.6.2007 (RNTPC) (2), (3), (4)

Rejection Reason(s):
(1) The local track leading to the site is far below the standard for use by heavy vehicles. The

proposed container parking arrangement within the site is considered not satisfactory.

(2) There is insufficient information in the submission to demonstrate that the proposed use would
not generate adverse environmental and drainage impacts on the surrounding areas.

(3) The development was not in line with the planning intention of the "Residential (Group D)"
zone, which was to improve and to upgrade the existing temporary domestic accommodations
and to cater for low-rise and low-density residential developments.

(4) The development was not in line with the Town Planning Board Guidelines on 'Application
for Open Storage and Port Back-up Uses' in that there were adverse departmental comments.



A/YL-ST/640

Similar s.16 Applications in the vicinity of the Site within the same “R(D)” Zone on the
San Tin Outline Zoning Plan No. S/YL-ST/8 in the Past Five Years

Approved Applications

No. Application No. Use(s)/ Development(s) Date of Consideration
(RNTPC/TPB)

1. A/YL-ST/572 Proposed Temporary Warehouse for Storage of
Used Private Vehicles for Sale and a Covered
Works Area for a Period of 3 Years

29.5.2020 (RNTPC)
[Revoked on
28.10.2022]

2. A/YL-ST/594 Temporary Logistics Centre with Ancillary
Container Vehicle Park and Car Repair
Workshop, Warehouse for Cold Storage and Car
Beauty Service for a Period of 3 Years

12.11.2021 (RNTPC)

3. A/YL-ST/639 Temporary Warehouse for Storage of Used
Private Vehicles for Sale and a Covered Works
Area for a Period of 3 Years

3.2.2023 (RNTPC)
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Government Departments’ General Comments

1. Land Administration

Comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department (DLO/YL,
LandsD):

� the application site (the Site) comprises of Old Schedule Agricultural Lots (OSALs)
and Government Land (GL).  The OSALs are held under the Block Government Lease
which contains the restriction that no structures are allowed to be erected without prior
approval of the Government;

� the private land of lots 19 RP, 21 RP, 23 S.A and 42 RP in D.D. 105 is coved by Short
Term Waiver No. 5408 for the purpose of “not for any purpose other than temporary
cold storage”;

� portions of GL in the Site are covered by Short Term Tenancies (STTs) as below:

STT No. Adjoining Lot No.
(in D.D. 105)

Area (within
the Site)

Purposes

STT 2997 16 S.B ss.2, 16 S.B
ss.3

116 m2 Temporary open storage and retail
sale of construction machinery

STTYL 0158 21 RP, 23 S.A & 42
RP

337 m2 Temporary cold storage

� No permission is given for the occupation of the remaining GL in the Site (about 47m2

subject to verification).  The act of occupation of the above GL without Government’s
prior approval is not allowed;

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix IV.

2. Traffic

Comments of the Commissioner for Transport (C for T):

� no vehicle is allowed to queue back to or reverse onto/from the Site at any time during
the planning approval period;

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix IV.

3. Environment

Comments of the Director of Environmental Protection (DEP):

� based on the submitted layout plan in the FI, the emergency generator room, main
switch room, cold room office and portable and flushing water tank and pump room and
A/C plant would be fully enclosed within the cold store building and the acoustic
louvres at the roof and front elevation will be directed away from nearby noise sensitive
receivers. In accordance with the revised “Code of Practice on Handling the
Environmental Aspects of Temporary uses and Open Storage Sites”, he has no objection
to the application;
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� no environmental complaint relating to the Site was recorded in the past 3 years; and

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix IV.

4. Nature Conservation

Comments of the Director of Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation (DAFC):

� no strong view on the application from nature conservation point of view as the Site is
paved and at certain distance from the Mai Po Lung Egretry (at least 40m away);

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix IV.

5. Landscape

Comments of the Chief Town Planner/Urban Design and Landscape, Planning Department
(CTP/UD&L, PlanD):

� the Site falls within “Residental (Group D)” (“R(D)”) zone, which is a non-landscape
sensitive zoning and no significant landscape impact arising from the proposed
development is anticipated.  As such, it is considered not necessary to impose a
landscape condition should the Town Planning Board approve the application.

6. Drainage

Comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services Department (CE/MN,
DSD):

� no objection in principle to the planning application from drainage operation and
maintenance point of view;

� after completion of the required drainage works, the applicant shall provide DSD a set
of record photographs showing the completed drainage works with corresponding
photograph locations marked clearly on the approved drainage plan.  DSD will inspect
the completed drainage works jointly with the applicant with reference to the set of
photograph;

� all the proposed drainage facilities should be constructed and maintained by the
applicant at his own cost.  The applicant should ensure and keep all drainage works on
site under proper maintenance at all times; and

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix IV.

7. Fire Safety

Comments of the Director of Fire Services (D of FS):

� no objection in principle to the proposal subject to fire service installations (FSIs) being
provided to his satisfaction;

� the submitted FSIs proposal is considered acceptable;
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� the installation/maintenance/modification/repair work of FSIs shall be undertaken by a
Registered Fire Service Installation Contractor (RFSIC).  The RFSIC shall after
completion of the installation/maintenance/modification/repair work issue to the person
on whose instruction the work was undertaken a certificate (F.S. 251) and forward a
copy of the certificate to the Director of Fire Services; and

� advisory comments as detailed in Appendix IV.

8. Other Departments

The following government departments have no objection to/no adverse comment on the
application and their advisory comments, if any, are in Appendix IV:

� Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways Department (CHE/NTW,
HyD);

� Chief Engineer/Railway Development 2-1, Highways Department (CE/RD2-1, HyD);

� Project Manager (West), Civil Engineering and Development Department (PM(W),
CEDD);

� Head of the Geotechnical Engineering Office, Civil Engineering and Development
Department (H(GEO), CEDD);

� Chief Engineer/Construction, Water Supplies Department (CE/C, WSD);

� Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings Department (CBS/NTW,
BD);

� Commissioner of Police (C of P); and

� District Officer (Yuen Long) (DO/YL).
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Recommended Advisory Clauses

(a) Should the applicant fail to comply with approval conditions again resulting in the
revocation of the planning permission, sympathetic consideration would not be given by
the Committee to any further application;

(b) to note the comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department
(DLO/YL, LandsD) that

� should planning approval be given to the subject planning application, the Short Term
Waiver (STW)/Short Term Tenancy (STT) holder(s) will need to immediately apply
to LandsD for modification of the STW/STT conditions where appropriate. The
owner(s) of lots without STW will need to immediately apply to LandsD to permit
the structures to be erected or regularise any irregularity on the application site (the
Site), if any. Also, the applicant has to either exclude the remaining Government
Land (GL) from the Site or apply for a formal approval prior to the actual occupation
of the concerned GL. Besides, given the proposed use is temporary in nature, only
application for regularisation or erection of temporary structure(s) will be considered.
Application(s) for any of the above will be considered by LandsD acting in the
capacity of the landlord or lessor at its sole discretion and there is no guarantee that
such application(s) will be approved. If such application(s) is approved, it will be
subject to such terms and conditions, including among others the payment of rent or
fee, as may be imposed by LandsD;

(c) to note the comments of the Commissioner for Transport (C for T) that

� the Site is connected to Castle Peak Road – San Tin via a section of a local access
which is not managed by Transport Department (TD). The land status of the local
access should be clarified with LandsD by the applicant. Moreover, the
management and maintenance responsibilities of the local access should be clarified
with the relevant lands and maintenance authorities accordingly;

(d) to note the comments of the Director of Environmental Protection (DEP) that

� the applicant is advised to follow the relevant mitigation measures and requirements
in the latest “Code of Practice on Handling the Environmental Aspects of Temporary
Uses and Open Storage Sites” to minimise potential environmental impacts on the
surrounding areas; and

� the applicant should ensure that the operation of the cold store would meet the noise
criteria of the Noise Control Ordinance;

(e) to note the comments of the Director of Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation (DAFC)
that

� the applicant should avoid disturbing any wild birds including their nests and eggs
which are protected under the Wild Animals Protection Ordinance, Cap. 170.  Any
lighting facilities installed on-site should also be directed towards the Site as far as
practicable;
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(f) to note the comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services
Department (CE/MN, DSD) that

� the applicant shall ascertain that all existing flow paths would be properly intercepted
and maintained without increasing the flooding risk of the adjacent areas;

� the applicant is reminded that the proposed drainage proposal/works as well as the
site boundary should not cause encroachment upon areas outside his jurisdiction;

� no public sewerage maintained by DSD is currently available for connection. No
sewerage collected from the Site should be discharged to the drainage system. For
sewage disposal and treatment, agreement from DEP shall be obtained; and

� the applicant should consult DLO/YL regarding all the proposed drainage works
outside the lot boundary in order to ensure the unobstructed discharge from the Site
in future;

(g) to note the comments of the Director of Fire Services (D of FS) that

� if the proposed structure(s) is required to comply with the Building Ordinance (BO)
(Cap. 123), detailed fire service requirements will be formulated upon receipt of
formal submission of general building plans; and

� licensing requirements would be formulated upon receipt of formal application via
the licensing authority;

(h) to note the comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways
Department (CHE/NTW, HyD) that

� the proposed access arrangement of the Site should be agreed by TD;

� HyD shall not be responsible for the maintenance of any access connecting the Site
and Castle Peak Road – San Tin; and

� adequate drainage measures should be provided to prevent surface water running from
the Site to the nearby public roads and drains;

(i) to note the comments of the Head of Geotechnical Engineering Office, Civil Engineering
and Development Department (H(GEO), CEDD) that

� the applicant is reminded to submit the proposed building works plans to the
Buildings Department (BD) for approval as required under provision of BO;

(j) to note the comments of Chief Engineer/Construction, Water Supplies Department
(CE/C, WSD) that

� existing water mains in the vicinity will be affected. The cost of any necessary
diversion should be borne by the developer;

� in case it is not feasible to divert the affected water mains, a waterworks reserve within
1.5m from the centre line of the water mains should be provided to WSD.  No
structure shall be built or materials stored within this waterworks reserve.  Free
access shall be made available at all times for staff of the Director of Water Supplies
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or their contractor to carry out construction, inspection, operation, maintenance and
repair works;

� no trees or shrubs with penetrating roots may be planted within the Waterworks
Reserve or in the vicinity of the water main; and

� government shall not be liable to any damage whatsoever and howsoever caused
arising from burst or leakage of the public water mains within and in close vicinity of
the Site; and

(k) to note the comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings
Department (CBS/NTW, BD) that

� there is no record of approval granted by Building Authority (BA) for the existing
structures at the Site;

� the Site shall be provided with means of obtaining access thereto from a street and
emergency vehicular access in accordance with Regulations 5 and 41D of the
Building (Planning) Regulations (B(P)R) respectively;

� the Site does not abut on a specified street of not less than 4.5m wide and its permitted
development intensity shall be determined under Regulation 19(3) of B(P)R at
building plan submission stage;

� before any new building works (including containers/open sheds as temporary
buildings, demolition and land filling, etc.) are to be carried out on the Site, prior
approval and consent of BA should be obtained, otherwise they are unauthorised
building works (UBWs) under BO.  An Authorised Person should be appointed as
the co-ordinator for the proposed building works in accordance with BO;

� for UBW erected on leased land, enforcement action may be taken by BD to effect
their removal in accordance with prevailing enforcement policy against UBW as and
when necessary.  The granting of any planning approval should not be construed as
an acceptance of any existing building woks or UBW on the Site under BO;

� any temporary shelters or converted containers for office, storage, washroom or other
uses are considered as temporary buildings are subject to the control of Part VII of
the B(P)R;

� if the proposed use under application is subject to issue of a license, the applicant
should be reminded that any existing structures on the Site intended to be used for
such purposes are required to comply with the building safety and other relevant
requirements as may be imposed by the licensing authority; and

� detailed checking under BO will be carried out at building plan submission stage.
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